
PLANNING COMMITTEE

2.00 PM - TUESDAY, 14 JANUARY 2020

COMMITTEE ROOM 1/2 - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE

PART 1

1. Declarations of Interest  

2. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 5 - 8)

3. To Request Site Visit(s) from the Applications Presented  

Report/s of the Head of Planning and Public Protection

Section A - Matter for Decision

Planning Application Recommended for Approval

4. Application No. P2019/5606 - 1A Bevan Street, Aberavon  
(Pages 9 - 20)
Change of use from C3 Dwelling to C4 House of Multiple 
Occupation at 1A Bevan Street, Aberavon, SA12 6ND.

Section B - Matter for Information

5. Delegated Decisions - 9 December 2019 to 7 January 2020  
(Pages 21 - 30)

6. Urgent Items  
Any urgent items at the discretion of the Chairman pursuant to 
Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972.

AGENDA



S.Phillips
Chief Executive

Civic Centre
Port Talbot Tuesday 7 January 2020

Committee Membership: 

Chairperson: Councillor S.Paddison

Vice 
Chairperson:

Councillor S.Pursey

Members: Councillors C.J.Jones, D.Keogh, R.Mizen, 
S.Bamsey, R.Davies, S.K.Hunt, A.N.Woolcock, 
C.Williams, S.Renkes and M.Protheroe

Cabinet 
UDP/LDP 
Member:

Councillor A.Wingrave

Requesting to Speak at Planning Committee

The public have a right to attend the meeting and address the Committee 
in accordance with the Council’s approved procedure  which is available 
at www.npt.gov.uk/planning.

If you would like to speak at Planning Committee on an application 
reported to this Committee you must:

 Contact Democratic Services in writing at : Civic Centre, Port Talbot 
SA13 1PJ, preferably by email: democratic.services@npt.gov.uk. 

 Ensure your request to speak is made no later than two working 
days prior to the meeting date (by 2 pm on the preceding Friday 
based on a usual Tuesday meeting), 

 Clearly indicate the item number or application number on which 
you wish to speak and confirm whether you are supporting or 
objecting to the application.

http://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/procedure_note_for_new_%20planning_cttee_arrangments_final_version.pdf
http://www.npt.gov.uk/planning
mailto:democratic.services@npt.gov.uk


 Give your name and address (which will be publicly available unless 
there are particular reasons for confidentiality)

Please note that only one person is able to speak for each ‘category’ 
(objector; supporter; applicant/agent; Town/Community Council for each 
application.  Full details are available in the Council’s approved 
procedure.

In addition, if an objector registers to speak, the Applicant/Agent will be 
notified by the Council.

Should you wish to discuss any aspect of public speaking, please contact 
the Democratic Services Team on 01639 763713.

Commenting on planning applications which are to be reported to 
Committee

Should you wish to submit representations on an application presented to 
this Planning Committee, please note that these must be received by the 
Planning department no later than 2.00p.m. on the Friday before 
Committee (based on the usual Tuesday meeting).  If the meeting is not 
on a Tuesday, these should be received no later than 2.00pm on the 
penultimate working day immediately preceding the Planning Committee. 

Please note that representations received in accordance with the 
Council’s protocol are summarised and, where necessary, commented 
upon in the form of an Amendment Sheet, which is circulated to Members 
of the Planning Committee by email on the evening before Committee, 
and re-distributed prior to the commencement of the meeting.

http://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/procedure_note_for_new_%20planning_cttee_arrangments_final_version.pdf
http://www.npt.gov.uk/pdf/procedure_note_for_new_%20planning_cttee_arrangments_final_version.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



PLANNING COMMITTEE

(COUNCIL CHAMBER - PORT TALBOT CIVIC CENTRE)

Members Present: 17 December 2019

Chairperson: Councillor S.Paddison

Vice Chairperson: Councillor S.Pursey

Councillors: C.J.Jones, D.Keogh, R.Mizen, A.N.Woolcock, 
C.Williams, S.Renkes and M.Protheroe

UDP/LDP Member: Councillor A.Wingrave

Local Member: Councillor L.M.Purcell

Officers In 
Attendance:

S.Ball, J.Griffiths, R.MacGregor, J.Burden and 
T.Davies

1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting held 
on 26 November, 2019 be approved.

2. TO REQUEST SITE VISIT(S) FROM THE APPLICATIONS 
PRESENTED 

RESOLVED: That no site visits be held on the applications 
before Committee today.

3. APPLICATION NO. P2019/5543 - PARC HADAU 

Officers made a presentation to the Planning Committee on this 
Application (full planning permission for the proposed development of 
35 zero carbon homes plus community building along with associated 
works including landscaping, parking, access, engineering works and 
ecological mitigation at Parc Hadau, land at Waun Sterw, Rhyd Y Fro, 
Pontardawe) as detailed in the circulated report.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



171219

In accordance with the Council’s approved Public Speaking Protocol, 
the applicants addressed the Planning Committee.

The local ward member was also present to give her representations 
at the meeting.

RESOLVED: That in accordance with Officers’ 
recommendations, Application No. 
P2019/5543 be approved, subject to the 
conditions detailed in the circulated report, and 
following revised wording of conditions 5 and 7 
provided in the circulated amendment sheet.

4. APPEALS RECEIVED - 18 NOVEMBER TO 9 DECEMBER 2019 

That the following Planning Appeals 
received, be noted, as detailed in the 
circulated report.

RESOLVED:

Appeal Ref: A2019/5006

Felling of 1 x Copper Beech Tree 
protected by Tree Preservation No. 
T229/T1 at 17 Brynawel, Pontardawe, 
SA8 4JP.

5. APPEAL DECISION - 18 NOVEMBER TO 9 DECEMBER 2019 

RESOLVED: That the following Planning Appeal determined 
be noted, as detailed in the circulated report.

Appeal Ref. A2019/5005

Single-storey storeroom extension at 5 Queen 
Street, Glyncorrwg, SA13 3BL.

Decision:

Appeal Dismissed

Page 6



171219

6. DELEGATED DECISIONS - 18 NOVEMBER TO 9 DECEMBER 
2019 

Members received a list of Planning Applications which had been 
determined between 18 November and 9 December 2019, as 
detailed within the circulated report.

RESOLVED: That the report be noted.

CHAIRPERSON

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



SECTION A – MATTERS FOR DECISION 
 
Planning Applications Recommended For Approval 

 

APPLICATION NO: P2019/5606 DATE: 25/11/2019 
PROPOSAL: Change of use from C3 Dwelling to C4 House in Multiple 

Occupation 
LOCATION: 1A Bevan Street, Aberavon, SA12 6ND 
APPLICANT: Mr Alex Godding 
TYPE: Full Plans 
WARD: Aberavon 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Ward Councillor Steffan Ap Dafydd requested on December 20th 2019 that 
the application be reported to Planning Committee on the grounds that the 
proposal will change the character and environment of the surrounding 
area, implicitly the vulnerable local residents.  There are also concerns 
relating to the accountability of a distant landlord.  
  
LINK TO RELEVANT PLANS/ REPORTS 
 
All plans / documents submitted in respect of this application can be 
viewed on the Council’s online register.   
 
SITE AND CONTEXT 
 
The application site is located at 1A Bevan Street, Aberavon which 
comprises an end of terrace two-storey property  
 
The property is located within the Port Talbot settlement limit and is in a 
terraced street of residential properties.  There is a Public House on the 
opposite corner facing the property. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT 
 
This is a full planning application for the change of use of the property 
from residential (Use Class C3a) to a 3 bedroom House of Multiple 
Occupation (HMO) (Use Class C4). The plans also indicate provision of 
bin and bicycle storage. 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

http://appsportal.npt.gov.uk/ords/idocs12/f?p=Planning:2:0::NO::P2_REFERENCE:P2019/5606


PLANNING HISTORY 
 
The property has no relevant planning history.  
 
CONSULTATIONS 
 
Port Talbot Ward: Objections have been received from one of the Ward 
Councillors, Cllr Steffan App Dafydd, who has expressed concern relating 
to the change in character and the environment of the surrounding area 
with the impact on people living there; and implicitly relates to a potential 
impact on vulnerable locally resident people and the accountability of the 
landlord.  
 
Environmental Health: No objections 
 
Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways): No objections 
 
REPRESENTATIONS 
 
A site notice was displayed on 26th November 26th 2019. Neighbours 
were consulted on November 25th 2019.   
 
To date 1 number representation has been received from the Aberavon 
Liberal Club expressing concern that there are no parking facilities in the 
area, and being a small terraced house placed on a zebra road crossing, 
used by many people, including children that use it to get to school on a 
daily basis, any inappropriately parked vehicles would cause a great deal 
of difficulty to the local residents.  
 
REPORT 
 
National Planning Policy 
 
Planning Policy Wales 
 
Technical Advice Notes - Technical Advice Note 12: Design  
 
Local Planning Policies 
 
The Development Plan for the area comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local 
Development Plan which was adopted in January 2016, and within which 
the following policies are of relevance: 
 

Page 10

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-10.pdf
https://gov.wales/technical-advice-notes


Topic based Policies 
 

• Policy SC1 Settlement limits 
• Policy TR2  Design and Access of New Development  
• Policy BE1  Design  
• Policy SP1     Climate Change 

 
Supplementary Planning Guidance 
 
The following SPG is of relevance to this application: - 
 

• Parking Standards (October 2016) 
 
EIA and AA Screening 
 
As the development is not Schedule 1 or Schedule 2 Development under 
the EIA Regulations, a screening opinion will not be required for this 
application. 
 
Issues 
 
Having regard to the above, the main issues to consider in this application 
relate to the principle of development, together with the impact on the 
visual amenity of the area, the amenities of neighbouring residents and 
highway safety. 
 
Principle of Development 
 
Background Information 
 
As background, it is of note that in February 2016 the Welsh Government 
introduced changes to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
Order to create a new use class for Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) 
(Class C4). The Use Class C4 in broad terms covers shared houses or 
flats occupied by between three and six unrelated individuals who share 
basic amenities, such as the proposals set out within this submission. 
 
The change to the Use Classes Order therefore served to bring the 
change of use of dwellings (which fall in Class C3) to HMO’s within the 
control of Planning Authorities by making such changes subject to 
planning permission.  The reason for the change in the Use Class Order 
followed a recognition that, in some parts of the Country, the number of 

Page 11

https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=38
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=84
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=87
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/ldp_written_statement_jan16.pdf#PAGE=35
https://www.npt.gov.uk/PDF/spg_parking_standards_oct16.pdf


HMOs within an area was having an adverse impact upon the character of 
an area.  
 
Having regard to the above, it is acknowledged that concentrations of 
HMOs can, in some instances, lead to a range of cultural, social and 
economic changes in a community and that high concentrations have the 
potential to create local issues. The Council does not, however, have any 
specific local Policies aimed at preventing the spread of HMOs at present. 
This is due largely to the absence of any significant historical issue in the 
area, and the introduction of the C4 Use Class post adoption of the LDP. 
 
Evolving National Policy Context 
 
Welsh Government has issued Planning Policy Wales Edition 10 in 
December 2018 in a substantially revised form developed around the 
goals embodied in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015.  
 
This includes a significant emphasis on placemaking and the creation of 
sustainable places and their role in improving the wellbeing of 
communities.  Indeed, PPW10 emphasises that one of the “Key Planning 
Principles” is “Creating & sustaining communities”, noting that: 
 
“The planning system must work in an integrated way to maximise its 
contribution to well-being. It can achieve this by creating well-designed 
places and cohesive rural and urban communities which can be sustained 
by ensuring the appropriate balance of uses and density, making places 
where people want to be and interact with others. Our communities need 
the right mix of good quality/well designed homes, jobs, services, 
infrastructure and facilities so that people feel content with their everyday 
lives.” 
 
It goes further to add that Social Considerations include: 
 

• who are the interested and affected people and communities;  
• how does the proposal change a persons way of life, which can 

include:  
o how people live, for example how they get around and access 

services;  
o how people work, for example access to adequate 

employment;  
o how people socialise, for example access to recreation 

activities; and  

Page 12

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2019-02/planning-policy-wales-edition-10.pdf


o how people interact with one another on a daily basis  
• who will benefit and suffer any impacts from the proposal;  
• what are the short and long-term consequences of the proposal on a 

community, including its composition, cohesion, character, how it 
functions and its sense of place; and 

• how does the proposal support development of more equal and 
more cohesive communities.  

 
When referring to housing (at 4.2.1), PPW also emphasises the need for 
Councils to “make informed development management decisions that 
focus on the creation and enhancement of Sustainable Places”.  In this 
regard, it is considered that Planning has an important role in ensuring not 
only that new development creates places, and communities, but also that 
existing communities are protected and enhanced, and that cohesive 
communities are retained.  
 
Evolving Local Context 
 
Although it is emphasised that it is not directly relevant to this Authority or 
its decisions, it is also of note that the City & County of Swansea (CCS) 
adopted its LDP in February 2019, which now includes a HMO Policy, 
accepted by the LDP Inspectors, and based on local background 
evidence, notably a report by an independent company called Lichfields. 
 
That background evidence report, while focussing on CCS, is 
nevertheless of relevance insofar as it identifies the wider national 
context.   
 
That report notes that: - 
 

• HMOs represent an efficient use of building resources, where a 
single house can be fully utilised to provide accommodation for 
multiple people. 
Notwithstanding their positive contributions and important socio-
economic role, areas with high densities of HMOs can also be 
characterised by problems with community cohesion, higher levels 
of noise and waste complaints, and place a strain on services 

• The positive impacts of HMOs are realised and, with rising 
pressures from the increased number of students, the need for 
affordable and flexible housing tenancies, and the changes to 
Housing Benefit, their role within the housing market is increasingly 
important. 

Page 13



 
The analysis undertaken by Lichfields identified a correlation between 
areas with high densities of HMOs and community cohesion issues. 
These negative impacts were summarised as: 
 
1.  Higher levels of transient residents, fewer long term households and 

established families, leading to communities which are not 
balanced; 

2.  Isolation for the remaining family households in areas with very high 
concentrations of HMOs; 

3.  Reduction in provision of community facilities for families and 
children, in particular pressure on the viability of schools through 
falling rolls; 

4.  Issues of anti-social behaviour, noise, burglary and other crime; 
5.  Increased pressure regarding on-street parking, although this might 

be expected in City Centre fringe locations; 
6.  Reduction in the quality of the local environment and street scene as 

a consequence of increased litter, lack of suitable refuse storage, 
refuse left on the street, fly tipping, increased levels of housing 
disrepair in the private rented sector, and high numbers of letting 
signs. 

 
As a consequence of this research, CCS now has an adopted HMO Policy 
in their LDP.  However, the complexity of assessing whether any 
proposed change of use has a harmful impact on local character or 
community cohesion is demonstrated by the varying criterion in their 
Policy, which includes a requirement (outside of their HMO Management 
areas – these being existing areas of high HMO concentration) for any 
proposal not to result in more than 10% of all residential  properties within 
a 50m radius of the proposal being HMOs, and within ‘small streets’ for a 
proposal to not “create a disproportionate over-concentration of HMOs 
within that street”. In addition to specifying % rates within designated 
areas, the policy also requires an assessment of whether the 
development would have an unacceptable adverse impact caused by 
noise nuisance and general disturbance.  
 
The supporting text to their Policy is also relevant to a wider 
understanding of the issue, insofar as it emphasises that there is a need 
for future HMO provision to be managed sustainably in the interests of 
fostering cohesive communities, including avoiding instances of over-
concentration of HMO properties to the detriment of residential amenity 
and community balance. These objectives are equally pertinent to 
consideration of this application. 

Page 14



 
It also emphasises that “National research has identified that 10% is a 
general ‘tipping point’ beyond which the evidence indicates that a 
concentration of HMOs can begin to have an adverse impact on the 
character and balance of a community. This tipping point is described as a 
threshold beyond which a community can ‘tip’ from a balanced position in 
terms of demographic norms and impacts, towards a demographic that is 
noticeably more mixed in terms of shared and family households.  
 
Assessment of Current Application 
 
While it is again emphasised that the CCS Policy context described above 
is not directly relevant to this assessment, the approach itself is 
considered to have merit insofar as it is an evidence-based approach that 
provides a robust rationale for applying a 10% threshold for all areas 
outside their HMO Management Area.  This does not mean, however that 
anything over 10% is unacceptable or harmful as a matter of principle 
given the need to still demonstrate the harm of such concentrations and 
the absence of a policy within NPT.  
 
In the absence of a HMO Policy, this application has to be determined in 
line with current LDP Policies.  In this respect it is emphasised that the 
application site is located within the settlement limits defined by Policy 
SC1 of the LDP and therefore the principle of residential development 
(albeit a Class C4 HMO use rather than a Class C3 dwelling house) would 
be acceptable subject to an assessment of its general impacts. This 
includes consideration of any potential wider impacts on local character 
and social / community cohesion created by Class C4 uses, as well as 
other amenity / highway issues. 
 
The wider assessment of the principle, however, should have regard to 
the local and national context described earlier, and it is especially notable 
that there is a need for this Authority to ensure that the years where there 
is a ‘policy vacuum’ between the adoption of our current LDP (in January 
2016) and conclusion of the review (commencing 2020 and adoption in 
2024) is not taken advantage of by developers to the extent that 
applications are progressed incrementally to the point where the character 
and cohesion of the local area could be irreparably harmed. 
 
Within this context, based on the information accessible to the Council, 
whilst there are 28 dwellings along the length of the street within which the 
application site is located, none of them are currently occupied as HMOs. 
The nearest recorded HMO is a single property located on Pendarvis 

Page 15



Terrace which is the terrace to the West of Bevan Street. Moreover, 
Policies or SPGs adopted by other authorities including Swansea have 
referred to a 50m buffer zone being drawn around the application site and 
a requirement for consideration of the number of HMOs within that zone. 
In this case there are no other known HMOs within the zone (as shown on 
the plan below).   

 
Having regard to the guidance in PPW (4.2.1), which emphasises the 
need for Councils to “make informed development management decisions 
that focus on the creation and enhancement of Sustainable Places” it is 
considered that Planning has an important role in ensuring not only that 
new development creates places, and communities, but also that existing 
communities are protected and enhanced, and that cohesive communities 
are retained.   
 

Page 16



In this respect, while it is noted that there is often concern in the local 
community about the potential impact of HMOs on local character and 
social cohesion, there is no known HMO issue in this area, such that even 
in the absence of a specific HMO Policy within the LDP, there are no 
grounds to refuse this application relating to the impact on local character 
or community cohesion. 
 
Impact on Visual Amenity 
 
There are no external alterations proposed to the property. In this respect, 
it is considered that the change of use to HMO (which is residential) would 
not have a detrimental impact upon the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area or street-scene. 
 
Impact on Residential Amenity 
 
The proposed development will not result in any external alternations to 
the property which could further impact upon the amenities of residents 
within neighbouring properties over and above that currently experienced.  
 
Having regard to the size of the property (three bedrooms with a small 
kitchen and single reception room), the use of the property will be for up to 
3 persons, a number which is not significantly different to that of many 
houses which are occupied by families (probably less). It is therefore 
considered that the noise and disturbance associated with the comings 
and goings to and from the property are unlikely to be different when 
compared to the existing use or a family property.   
 
Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed three-bed HMO would not 
lead to unacceptable levels of noise, disturbance or nuisance that would 
warrant refusal of this application on such grounds.  
 
In light of the above it is considered that there are no justifiable grounds to 
refuse planning permission on residential amenity grounds, having 
particular regard to the fact that if any such issues arise in the future, 
these can be addressed by the Environmental Health Section under their 
statutory nuisance powers. 
 
Parking and Access Requirements and Impact on Highway Safety 
 
Policy TR2 of the Local Development Plan states that permission will only 
be granted for development that is acceptable in terms of access, parking 
and highway safety. The policy also requires that sufficient parking and 

Page 17



cycle provision is provided and that the development is accessible by a 
range of travel means.   
 
The existing building does not have any off street parking provision given 
the terraced nature, and it is noted that the Liberal Club have raised local 
concerns about the proposal on the grounds that there is insufficient 
parking space. 
 
The approved Parking Standards SPG does not specifically refer to Class 
C4 HMOs, but it is considered that the proposed residential use should be 
subject to the same parking standards as for a C3 dwellinghouse use. 
 
Based on the approved standards the existing 2-bedroom house would 
require 2 parking spaces (though no off-street provision is possible).  The 
proposed change of use to a 3 Bed HMO would require 3 spaces. Purely 
in terms of the ‘standards’ therefore, the proposal would increase the 
number of spaces required. The reality of the matter however is, that the 
current use does not offer any off-street spaces at all, and the property 
could be occupied by more than the three persons proposed under this 
application (and which would be controlled by condition) with potentially 
similar or greater local impacts. 
 
It is also of note that Bevan Street is a no through road, with on street 
space for approximately 32 cars on street (26 dwellings + Club), including 
some residents only spaces. Moreover, the property is located adjacent to 
a main road and to a bus stop, making it a highly sustainable location, and 
proposes provision of cycle parking facilities for the residents. In this 
respect, it is also considered that the street has a reasonable number of 
spaces available, and that even were this change of use to increase the 
number of vehicles locally (by one), it would be difficult to argue that the 
change of use would have an unacceptable impact on the safe and free 
flow of traffic or on highway safety.  Nevertheless as referred to above it is 
considered that the use of the property should be restricted to 3 persons 
(one per bedroom) to control against any unacceptable intensification. 
 
As a consequence the Head of Engineering and Transport (Highways) 
has assessed the proposal and raised no highway objections to the 
proposal.  
 
Having regard to the above, it is concluded that the development would 
represent an acceptable form of development in a sustainable location 
which would have no unacceptable impact on either highway or 
pedestrian safety. 

Page 18



Layout of Property 
 
The Environmental Health officer has raised potential issues with the 
layout of the proposed HMO insofar as the proposed kitchen and 
bathroom/WC provision is only considered sufficient for a maximum of 4 
persons. As referred to above, however, the maximum number of persons 
is to be restricted to 3 (one per bedroom) on parking / highway / grounds. 
 
CONCLUSION 
 
The decision to recommend planning permission has been taken in 
accordance with Section 38 of The Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, which requires that, in determining a planning application the 
determination must be in accordance with the Development Plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise.  The Development Plan 
comprises the Neath Port Talbot Local Development Plan (2011–2026) 
adopted January 2016. 
 
It is considered that the proposed development would not have a 
detrimental impact upon local character or community cohesion, on 
residential amenity or upon the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area, and there would be no adverse impact upon highway 
and pedestrian safety. Hence, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policies SC1, TR2 and BE1 of the Neath Port Talbot 
Local Development Plan 
 
RECOMMENDATION – Approve subject to conditions 
 
Time Limit Conditions 
 
 1 The development shall begin no later than five years from the date 

of this decision.  
  
 Reason:  
 To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
List of Approved Plans 
 
 2 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

following approved plans and documents:  
  

Page 19



 - Proposed First Floor Plan 1:100 
 - Existing First Floor 1:100 
 - Existing Ground Floor 1:100 
 - Proposed Ground Floor 1:100 
 - Site Plan 1:500 
 - Red Line Location Plan 1:100 
  
 Reason:  
 In the interests of clarity. 
 
Action Conditions 
 
 3 Prior to occupation, Bin storage and Bike storage facilities for up to 

3 number people shall be provided for as detailed on the approved 
site plan and retained as such at all time. 

  
 Reason 
 In the interest of residential amenity and highway and pedestrian 

safety, and to accord with Policy BE1 of the Local Development 
Plan. 

 
Regulatory Conditions 
 
 4 No more than 3 persons shall be resident at any one time within 

the House in Multiple Occupation hereby approved. 
   
 Reason: 
 For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of amenity and 

highway safety, and to accord with Policy BE1 of the Local 
Development Plan. 

 
 
 

Page 20



SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION 
 
DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  
DETERMINED BETWEEN 9th DECEMBER 2019 AND 7th JANUARY 
2020 
 

App No:  P2011/0486 
Proposal: Residential development 10 detached dwellings and 

associated works (Amended drainage information 
received 13/05/2019) 

Location: The Welfare Hall  Glynneath  Neath  SA11 5EE     
Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Glynneath 

 

App No:  P2019/0302 
Proposal: Construction of 5 number detached dwellings (Outline 

with all matters reserved) 
Location: Land between 4 Forest View & 100 Neath Road  Neath 

Road  Resolven  Neath  SA11 4AN   
Decision: Approved subject to a 106 agreement 
Ward: Resolven 

 

App No:  P2019/5167 
Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of Condition 9  (top 

soil importation) of Planning Permission P2017/0730 
(Five storey academic building)  

Location: Swansea University Bay Campus   Fabian Way  
Crymlyn Burrows  SA1 8EN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 5



App No:  P2019/5218 
Proposal: WELSH MINISTERS DECISION: Demolition of two 

storey and single storey rear extensions, temporary 
office building, and roofs to three storey extension. The 
erection of a 3 storey rear extension incorporating a 
pitched roof over the existing 3 storey rear extension. 
Refurbishment of roof including  roof vents and roof 
light within the new roof extension. External works 
including new access and parking area to the rear. 
Internal refurbishment of the existing building including 
the removal of the existing doorway in the entrance 
lobby and the creation of  new doorway, removal of two 
walls and two doors to create a reception waiting area,  
removal of a partition wall and doorway in the hallway, 
and the removal of a wall and door near the rear 
staircase on the ground floor. On the first floor the 
removal of a wall in office 1 and a wall to create access 
to the new extension. On the second floor a wall and 
door near the stairs removed with a new wall and door 
created. New electrics and heating throughout, 
repairing existing damaged ceilings and fireproofing. 
refurbishment of existing windows to front and 
replacement of existing upvc windows to rear with 
traditional timber sash windows. 
 

Location: 8 Wind Street  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  SA11 3EH     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2019/5345 
Proposal: Retention and completion of replacement roof with 

increased eaves and ridge height (Amended plans 
submitted 07.11.19) 

Location: 13 Gwilym Road  Cwmllynfell  SA9 2GH       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell 

 

Page 22



App No:  P2019/5447 
Proposal: Details submitted pursuant to the discharge of 

Condition 6 of Planning Permission P2019/0147 
(Landscaping) for temporary classroom block. 

Location: Swansea University Bay Campus   Fabian Way  
Crymlyn Burrows  SA1 8EN     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2019/5467 
Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of Conditions 6 and 8  

(Drainage and site access arrangements) of Planning 
Permission P2018/0765 for a 3 storey mixed use block 
of residential and commercial units. 

Location: Water Street  Neath  SA11 3EP       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2019/5484 
Proposal: Single storey side extension 
Location: 5 Tai Canol  Cwmavon  SA12 9PN       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2019/5501 
Proposal: Retention of two-storey rear extension and extended 

car parking facilities, plus construction of a new single-
storey reception area to front elevation and drainage 
pond to rear. 

Location: Unit 34   Baglan Industrial Park  Aberavon Road  
Aberavon  SA12 7DJ   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



App No:  P2019/5517 
Proposal: Retention of detached vehicle maintenance workshop 

and laying of stone chippings to form hard 
standing/storage and vehicle access areas 

Location: Baglan Industrial Park, Unit 34   Aberavon Road  
Aberavon  SA12 7DJ     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Aberavon 

 

App No:  P2019/5525 
Proposal: Details pursuant to the discharge of condition 3 (noise 

management plan), 4 (means of enclosure), 5 
(drainage), 6 (scheme to assess nature and extent of 
contamination to also take full account of any works 
required for drainage and any other intrusive ground 
works necessary to facilitate the use of this operation) 
and 7 (contamination remediation scheme) of planning 
permission P2018/0317 granted on 25.10.18 

Location: Former Imo Car Wash Opposite  126 Pantyrheol  
Neath  SA11 2HD     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath East 

 

App No:  P2019/5528 
Proposal: Two storey rear extensions 
Location: 64 The Greenway  Llandarcy  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 6JB   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2019/5533 
Proposal: Retention and completion of walls to form front garden 

and stepped access to the dwelling. 
Location: 15 Whittington Street  Tonna  SA11 3JG       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Tonna 

 

 

Page 24



App No:  P2019/5548 
Proposal: Conversion  of garage to living accommodation, 

increase in height of garage and provision of new flat 
roof 

Location: 24 Trevallen Avenue  Cimla  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  
SA11 3UR   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cimla 

 

App No:  P2019/5563 
Proposal: Part two storey part single storey rear extension, 

dormer extension plus detached garage 
Location: 34 Moorlands  Dyffryn Cellwen  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA10 9HU   
Decision: Refused 
Ward: Onllwyn 

 

App No:  P2019/5576 
Proposal: Conversion of existing Grade 2 Listed Longhouse and 

Stable to living accommodation and glazed link 
extension along with external facade alterations 

Location: Nant Y Fedw Farm  Eastern Avenue Lane To Nant Y 
Fedw  Cymmer  Port Talbot  Neath Port Talbot   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cymmer 

 

App No:  P2019/5581 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension 
Location: 45 New Road  Gwaun Cae Gurwen  Ammanford  

Neath Port Talbot  SA18 1UN   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen 

 

App No:  P2019/5594 
Proposal: Replacement garage / workshop. 
Location: 34 Bryndulais Avenue  Seven Sisters  Neath  Neath 

Port Talbot  SA10 9EH   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Seven Sisters 

Page 25



 

App No:  P2019/5595 
Proposal: Detached garage 
Location: 9 Samuels Road  Cwmllynfell  SA9 2GT       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cwmllynfell 

 

App No:  P2019/5599 
Proposal: Detached garage 
Location: 41 Llygad Yr Haul  Caewern  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 7SR   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryncoch South 

 

App No:  P2019/5604 
Proposal: Prefabricated building for physiotherapy 
Location: Llandarcy Academy Of Sport  Access Road To 

Llandarcy Village  Llandarcy  Neath  Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc West 

 

App No:  P2019/5610 
Proposal: Two storey rear extension 
Location: 3 Plas Road  Rhos  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 

Talbot   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Rhos 

 

App No:  P2019/5612 
Proposal: Part single/part two storey rear extension and two 

storey side extension 
Location: 33 Llewellyn Street  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA11 5AF   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath 

 

 

Page 26



App No:  P2019/5621 
Proposal: Certificate of Lawful Development (proposed) - Single 

storey extension 
Location: 10 Citrine Avenue  Sandfields  Port Talbot  Neath Port 

Talbot  SA12 7SE   
Decision: Issue Certificate 
Ward: Sandfields West 

 

App No:  P2019/5624 
Proposal: Creation of window on side elevation and door and 

steps on rear elevation of existing offices 
Location: 3 Alfred Street  Neath  SA11 1EF       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2019/5629 
Proposal: Non-Material Amendment application for the variation 

of condition 1 (approved plans) and 10 (surface water 
and foul drainage) of planning consent P2019/5327 

Location: Former Hafod Residential Home   Wenham Place  
Neath       

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Neath North 

 

App No:  P2019/5630 
Proposal: Single storey rear extension and raised car parking 

area to front of dwelling 
Location: 4 Brynhyfryd  Glynneath  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA11 5BA   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Glynneath 

 

App No:  P2019/5631 
Proposal: Detached garage 
Location: 30 Cadoxton Terrace   Main Road  Cadoxton  SA10 

8BR     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Cadoxton 

 

Page 27



App No:  P2019/5633 
Proposal: Garage conversion, replacement parking plus garden 

shed 
Location: 191 Bryn Morgrug  Alltwen  Pontardawe  SA8 3BE     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Alltwen 

 

App No:  P2019/5635 
Proposal: Two storey rear extension 

 
Location: 109 Stratton Way  Court Herbert  SA10 7AS       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Dyffryn 

 

App No:  P2019/5637 
Proposal: Prior Notification for an agricultural building for the 

storage of dry farmyard manure and winter bedding 
Location: Hendreforgan Farm  Heol Y Goedlan  Rhiwfawr  

Swansea  Neath Port Talbot   
Decision: Prior Notification Not Required 
Ward: Cwmllynfell 

 

App No:  P2019/5643 
Proposal: Single storey side/rear extension, rear extension to 

existing garage, patio doors and Juliet balcony to first 
floor side elevation, velux rooflight in rear roof plane of 
main dwelling 

Location: 1 Ebbw Vale Row  Cwmavon  Port Talbot  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA12 9AY   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Bryn And Cwmavon 

 

App No:  P2019/5652 
Proposal: Change of use from office (Class B1) to a tattoo studio 

(sui generic) 
Location: 162 New Road  Skewen  Neath  Neath Port Talbot  

SA10 6HD   
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Coedffranc Central 

 

Page 28



App No:  P2019/5664 
Proposal: Non-material amendment to Planning Permission 

P2016/1062 (Approved on the 18/01/17 for Single 
storey rear extension including accommodation within 
the roof space with front and rear dormers) to allow for 
the alteration in external materials replacing the 
brickwork plinth with painted render. 

Location: 47 Brecon Road  Pontardawe  Swansea  Neath Port 
Talbot  SA8 4PA   

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Pontardawe 

 

App No:  P2019/5667 
Proposal: Submission of details pursuant to Conditions 2 

(Remediation Strategy), 9 (Construction Method 
Statement) and 14 (Surface Water Drainage) of 
Planning Application P2014/0995 approved on January 
6th 2015 

Location: Land At  Cramic Way  Port Talbot  SA13 1RU     
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam 

 

App No:  P2019/5682 
Proposal: Non-material amendment to application P2018/1036 to 

resize the bag filter and compressor room buildings 
together with changes in their locations; an increase in 
overall height of the pipe ducts; repositioning of the 
stack and removal of the LV and HV switch rooms, a 
section of ducting and transformer pen from the 
development. 

Location: Land At Port Talbot Steelworks   Margam  SA13 2NG       
Decision: Approved 
Ward: Margam 

 

App No:  P2019/5707 
Proposal: Non material amendment to planning application no 

P2014/0876 approved on 10/08/2015 in relation to the 
installation of 3 ground floor side facing windows 

Location: Plot At Rear Of 18   Leyshon Road  Gwaun Cae 
Gurwen  SA18 1EL     

Decision: Approved 
Ward: Gwaun Cae Gurwen 

 

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Application No. P2019/5606 - 1A Bevan Street, Aberavon
	5 Delegated Decisions - 9 December 2019 to 7 January 2020
	SECTION B – MATTERS FOR INFORMATION


